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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of
Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity,
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as "the Standalone Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements:

a) give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required; and

b) give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit/loss
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity, and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

tandalone Financial Statements under ;
visions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

3. Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 33 (Contingencies and Commitments) to the
Standalone Financial Statements which describes:

« The contingency related to Income Tax matters. The Company had filed
its Income Tax Return (ITR) for Assessment Year 2024-25 after the
prescribed due date and had applied for condonation of delay under
section 119(2)(b) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The said condonation
application has been accepted by the Income Tax Department on October
08, 2025. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

« The ongoing GST matters, the liability for which has been assumed by
the Company pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement (BTA), and
which are currently being contested by the Company.

We draw attention to Note 15 (Borrowings) to the financial statements,
which states that the Company has accepted loans from its shareholders.
Based on management representation, such loans are in compliance with
the provisions applicable to private limited companies under the Companies
Act, 2013, and the necessary reporting under the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014, including filing of Form DPT-3, has been made. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
4. Key Audit Matters (KAMs)

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit




Recognition and Measurement of
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (IND AS 115),

The Company's operations involve
manufacturing a wide range of
products (cyst & abscess removal
trainer, infant io leg, polymerised
rubber facesime, pvce human
anatomical models and human
anatomical models) along with trading
of software.

Company recognises its revenue in
accordance with the accounting policy
as described in the note 2.2.6(a) to the
accompanying standalone financial
statements.

Refer Note 32 for the revenue
recognised during the year.

The Company estimates variable
considerations in the nature of volume
rebates, discounts, performance
bonuses, penalties and similar items
and adjusts the transaction price for
the sale of goods and services. These
expected variable considerations are
analysed either at customer or
contracts basis against agreed terms
with customers and may differ from
actual results.

Revenue is recognized upon delivery,
installation, and training, indicating
that the performance obligation is
satisfied only after the completion of the
training.

The Company recognizes revenue from
distributor sales upon the distributor’s
acceptance of the products following
inspection at the Company’s premises,
prior to the physical dispatch of goods.
Such transactions are evaluated in
accordance with the  provisions
specified under Ind AS 115, Revenue

Our audit focused on evaluating the
Company's application of the five-step
model under IND AS 115 to various
contracts.

We specifically:

(i) Assessed the
appropriateness of
recognizing revenue from
sale of goods at the point in
time when control is
transferred, and revenue
from services over time,
including obtaining and
reviewing the terms of
distributor agreements and
evaluating  whether the
criteria for revenue
recognition were met.

(i)  Reviewed the accounting for
variable consideration,
requiring  evaluation  of
management's estimates
against agreed customer
terms.

(iii) Verified revenue cut-off
procedures for the distinct
types of transactions.




Revenue is recognized upon delivery,
installation, and training, indicating
that the performance obligation is
satisfied only after the completion of the
training.

The Company recognizes revenue from
distributor sales upon the distributor’s
acceptance of the products following
inspection at the Company’s premises,
prior to the physical dispatch of goods.
Such transactions are evaluated in
accordance with the  provisions
specified under Ind AS 115, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, to
ensure that the criteria for revenue
recognition are appropriately satisfied.

Considering the materiality of amounts
involved and above complexities,
revenue recognition  has been
considered as a key audit matter for the
current year.

5. Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone




Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

6. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

7. Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
i guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will




always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
one Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and




whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone
Financial Statements.

e We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial
controls that we identify during our audit.

e We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

e From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A. Compliance with Section 143(3) of the Act
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of
our audit.




b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been

d)

h)

kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as
on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year

is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Financial
Statements (Refer Note 33).

ii. The Company has made adequate provision, as required under any
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.




1il.

iv.

There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries").

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries").

(c) Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clauses (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the
year. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting software systems for maintaining
its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.




B. Report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020”)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure A a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For, N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FP-Q_)\D A,
Neha Saluja
M.No-524316

Place: New Delhi
Date: October 27, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CARO 2020)

(Referred to in paragraph 8(B) of our report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited for the year ended March 31,
2025)

i. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Intangible Assets, and Title Deeds:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not hold any Intangible Assets, and accordingly, the requirement
to maintain proper records for the same is not applicable.

(b) The Management has informed us that the physical verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment at reasonable intervals has been conducted.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee) during the financial year, and accordingly, the provisions of
Clause (i)(c) of CARO 2020 are not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) during the
year. During the year, the company has elected Ind AS 101 exemptions to continue with
the carrying value for all of its Property Plant and Equipment at deemed cost as at the
date of transition.

(e) No proceedings are pending against the Company for holding any benami property.
ii. Inventory and Working Capital:

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals; the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate. No material
discrepancies (10% or more in aggregate for each class) were noticed based on the
records made available.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. The quarterly returns/statements is not requiréd to be filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions.

iii. Investments, Guarantees, Security, and Loans and Advances:

;éompany has granted loans to its Director, Close Members of KMP, and an
E/’E';iélise over which KMP has significant influence without charging any interest.

b
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(c)In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted, a schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated, and
consequently, the repayments/receipts of principal and interest were generally
not regular.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted, amounts
aggregating Rs. 11,37,17,996 were overdue for more than ninety days as at the
balance sheet date. Furthermore, the company has not taken reasonable steps
for the recovery of the principal and interest amounts, which is prejudicial to
the company’s interest.

(e) No loan or advance has been renewed, extended, or settled by granting a
fresh loan.

(f) The company has granted loans in the nature of loans which are either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
The details of such loans as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Particulars Description
Aggregate Amount 1137 Lakhs
Percentage to Total Loans 100%

Amount to Promoters/Related Parties | 586 Lakhs

iv. Compliance with Sections 185 and 186:

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act,
as it has granted loans to its Director, Close Members of KMP, and an
Enterprise over which KMP has significant influence.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act,
as it has granted loans to its Director, Promoter, Related Parties, Shareholders
and others without charging interest at a rate not less than the prevailing yield
of Government Security closest to the tenor of the loan.

v. Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder. The Company has, however, accepted unsecured loans from its
shareholders, which, based on the representations made by the management,
are not considered deposits in terms of Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company has complied with the
apphcable provisions relating to filing of return of deposits/particulars in Form

with the Registrar of Companies. Accordingly, the requirements of
5 73 to 76 of the Act are not attracted to the Company.



vi. Cost Records:

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act for the Company.

vii. Statutory Dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Employees’ State Insurance, Cess, and other material statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities. except the Income Tax Return for the Financial Year
2023-24 (Assessment Year 2024-25) was filed after the statutory due date
prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management has filed an
application for condonation of delay with the Income Tax Department, which
has been approved on October 8, 2025.

(b) No undisputed statutory dues were outstanding at the year-end for a period
of more than six months.

viii. Undisclosed Income:

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

ix. Repayment of Loans/Borrowings:

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution.

(c) The Company has utilized term loans for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

(d) The Company has not used any funds raised on a short-term basis for long-
term purposes.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not pledged securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures, or associate companies.

x. Initial Public Offer (IPO)/Further Public Offer (FPO)/Preferential
Allotment:

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of IPO or FPO during the




(b) During the year, the Company has issued 1,56,575 Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) on a preferential basis, aggregating to Rs.
25,67,83,000.

xi. Fraud:

(a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under Section 143(12) of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
with the Central Government.

(c) The Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the
year.

xii. Nidhi Company:
The Company is not a Nidhi Company.
xiii. Related Party Transactions:

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the
Act in respect of transactions with the related parties and the details have been
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable
IND AS.

xiv. Internal Audit System:

(a) In view of the fact that the Company does not fall under the prescribed class
of companies required to appoint an Internal Auditor under Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to have a formal Internal Audit system
is not applicable to the Company. However, the management has established
an internal control system, which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.".

(b) Accordingly, the requirement to consider the reports of the Internal Auditors
for the year under audit does not arise.

xv. Non-cash Transactions:

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors
or persons connected with them.

xvi. NBFC/CIC Registration:

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

xvii. Cash Losses:

ny has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or
mediately preceding financial year.



xviii. Auditor’s Resignation:

The outgoing auditor had resigned during the year. We have taken into
consideration the issues, objections, or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor
on the date of resignation and confirm that:

¢ No issues, objections, or concerns were raised by the outgoing auditor in
their resignation letter.

xix. Material Uncertainty in Payment of Liabilities:

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

(a) The Company has incurred the required amount of CSR expenditure (Refer
Note 37).

(b) The company has transferred the unspent amount, if any, other than
relating to an ongoing project, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial
year.

For, N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- O

NEIS ~
Neha Saluja

M.No-524316 8 Accss
UDIN: 2 ©<2UR 16 R M \ e Ryoy¢

Place: New Delhi
Date: October 27, 2025




N SALUJA & ASSOCIATES

INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Bel S ciiimcann 5 7

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (IFC Report)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit.
e conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
rhal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
Diegﬁu‘étl\‘-.l-.by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
MNoEE3(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
_ 7@15 with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those Standards
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and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

ause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
"br\ting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
Delhi  \¢




override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For, N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 031453N

/
Nelf L
Neha Saluj
M.No-524316

Place: New Delhi
Date: October 27, 2025



Solutions Private Limited,

Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Sii
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share dara and as stated)

Particulars Note As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 553.80 47.44 -

Financial asscts

- Other financial assets 5 202.26 197.46 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 - 638.49 -
Total non-current assets 756.06 883.39 -
Current assets
Inventories 8 1,444.34 3.815.54 -
Financial asscts

- Trade receivables 9 10,538.90 513.42 -

- Cash and cash equivalents 10 724,12 357.03 -

- Other bank balances 11 117.21 106.65 -

- Loans 4 1,137.18 510.68 -

- Other financial asscts 5 178.55 36.72 1.00
Other current assets 7 1.448.40 2.493.73 -
Total current assets 15,588.70 7.833.77 1.00
Total assets 16,344.76 8.717.16 1.00
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity sharc capital 12 475.73 475.73 1.00
Instruments entircly cquity in nature 13 15.66 - -
Other equity 14 9,208.77 2.080.72 -
Total equity 9,700.16 2,556.45 100
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 15 1,101.36 - -
Provisions 16 5.63 - -
Deferred tax liabilitics (net) 17 0.14 - &
Total non-current liabilities 1,107.13 - -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 15 1,201.89 784.96 -

- Trade payables 19

- total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises: and 478.65 41.72 -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,297.47 2,6494] -

- Other financial liabilitics 20 717.44 158.25 -
Other current liabilitics 18 1,083.34 1.866.18 -
Provisions 16 0.98 - -
Current tax liabilitics (net) 6 751.70 660.19 -
Total current liabilities 5,537.47 6,160.71 -
Total liabilities 6,644.60 6,160.71 -
Total equity and liabilities 16,344.76 8,717.16 1.00
Corporate Information & Material accounting policy 1&2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For N Saluja & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors d y
Chartered Accountants Maverick Simulation Solutions Limit \

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD. i e v,
)
/A’ IW For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
’ Anuj Chahal Kanika Chahal
Diritaer Director
{DIN:02854063) (DIN:08356005)

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Dated: 27.10.2025
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 21 13,630.81 1,422.23
Other income 22 255.55 22.68
Total income 13,886.36 1,444.91
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 3,382.15 4,747.30
Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 266.77 78.66
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 2,372.59 (3,815.54)
Employee benefits expense 26 356.38 113.30
Finance costs 27 283.96 14.75
Depreciation expense 28 3.03 2.39
Other expenses 29 1,090.61 177.57
Total expenses 7,755.49 1,318.43
Profit before tax 6,130.87 126.49
Tax expense 30
a) Current tax 710.00 670.44
b) Deferred tax (net) 638.78 (638.49)
Total tax expense 1,348.78 31.95
Profit for the year 4,782.09 94.54
Other comprehensive income ('OC1")
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/(asset) (0.86) -

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.15 -
Other comprehensive income for the year (Net of Tax) (0.71) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,781.38 94.54
Eamings per equity share 31
- Basic (in ?) [nominal value per share X 10/-] 97.32 395
- Diluted (in ¥) [nominal value per share T 10/-] 97.32 3.95
Corporate Information & Material accounting policy 1&2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 031453N

(e NLalug
Neha Saluja
Membership No.: 524316

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Dated: 27.10.2025

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.

Directar
Anuj Chahal
Director
(DIN:02854063)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited

Wrﬁl\ﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&h SOLUTIONS LTO.

Kanika Chahal
Director
(DIN:08356005)C 10"




Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Mayerick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025
(A amounts ave in Indion < lakh except share data and as stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

FaRtcols March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,130.87 126.49
Profit before tax 6,130.87 126.49
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expensc 303 2.39
Finance costs 28397 14.75
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (4.62) -
Liabilities no longer required written back (185.66) -
Interest income (18.17) (0.02)
Unrealised forcign exchange (gain) / loss (net) - -
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,209.42 143.61
Waorking capital adjustments:
(Increasc)/Decrcase in Inventorics 2371.20 (3,815.53)
(Increasc)/Decrease in Trade receivables (10,025.47) (513.43)
I (D ) in Trade payabl (729.36) 2,691.13
(Increase)/Decrease in other current & non-current financial assels (140.83) (65.57)
(Increasc)/Decrease in other current and non-current asscts 1,045.33 (2,493.73)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial labilitics 559.19 158.25
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (782.84) 1,866.19
Increase/( Decrease) in provisions 5.75 -
Cash flows from operating activities (1,487.61) (2,029.08)
Income taxes paid (612.49) (10.25)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A) (2,100.10) (2,039.33)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for acquisition of property plant and equipment, right-ol-use assets and intangible assetd (547.46) (49.83)
Procceds from sale of property, plant and equipment 42.69 -
Loans given (626.50) (510.68)
Investment made in fixed deposits (16.36) (274.27)
Interest received 18.17 0.02
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B) (1,129.46) (834.76)
Cash flows from financing activities (refer note below)
Proceeds from issuc of compulsorily convertible preference shares 2,362.33 -
Issue of equity shares during the year - 2,460.91
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,100.00 -
Movement in short-term borcowings (net) 408.54 784.96
Finance cost paid (274.22} (14.75)
Net cash flows from/(used in) in financing activities (C) 3,596.65 3,231.12
Net (decrease)/inerease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 367.09 357.03
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 357.03 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) 724.12 357.03
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
- Balance with banks in cunent accounts (refer note 10) 651.72 336.68
- Cheques, drafls on hand - 3.09
- Cash on hand (refer note 10) 72.40 17.26
724.12 357.03

Notes:

I The above Statement ol Cash Flows has been prepared using indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) - Statement of Cash Flows.

2 Net of movement in capital work-in-progress, capital advances and creditor lor capital goods,

3 Refer note 15(6) for reconciliation of liabilitics arising from financing activitics.

As per report of even date attached.

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.

For N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 031453N

Neky

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited
CIN:U47721DL2023PLC419501

Nehasawjs f Dire gk cnanat For MAVERICISHALATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
Membership Ng2 524316 Director Dircetor
(DIN:02854063) (DIN:08356005) \&u\(ﬁ

Place of Signature: New Delhi Director

Dated: 27.10.2025




Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in Indian 3 lakh except share data and as stated)

A) Equity share capltal’

Particulars

Amount

Balance as at September 4, 2023

Changes in equity share capital
Balancc as at March 31, 2024
Changes in equily share capital
Balance as at March 31, 2025

(*Refer note 12 for further details)

B) Instrument Entirely Equity in Naturc

(1) Compulsority Convertible Preference Shares

Particulars

474.73
475.73

47573

Amount

Balance as at September 4, 2023
Changes during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024
0,012 Compalsorily Convertible Preference Shares issued
Balance as at March 31, 2025

("Refer nate 13 for firther details)

©) Other equity

15.66
15.66

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Sceuritics Premium Reserve

Other Comprehensive

Retained earnings Income Teed

Balance as at September 4, 2023
Restated adjustments (refer note 39)
Balance as at September 4, 2023
Premium on issue of equily shares
Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year:
- Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/(asset) (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income as at March 31, 2024
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Premium on issue of C

ibl

£

Profiv/ (Toss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year:
- Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/(asset) (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income as at March 31, 2025
Balance as at March 31, 2025

liy ¢

(" Refer note 14 for further details)

Shares 1ssued

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of cven date artached.

For N Saluja & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 031453N

Ncha Saluja

Memberghip No.: 524316

Place of Signa
Dated: 27.10.20:

|: New Delhi

=S = 1.986.18
94.54 - 94.54

1,986.18

94.54 = 2,080.72

1,986.18
234667

9454 - 2,080.72
- - 234667
4,782.09 - 4,782.09

5 0.71) ©0.71)

2,346.67

4.782.09 _(0.71) 7.128.05

4.332.85

4.876.63 (0.71) 9.208.77

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.

o

Anuj Chahal
_ pDirecto

R 6BENESH

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Maverick Simulation Solutians Limited Gl ATIAM oAl HITIONE | T
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Director
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

1 Corporate Information
Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited("The Company") having CIN no. U47721DL2023PLC419501 is a public company domiciled in India and is

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The status of the Company has changed from private limited to public limited
w.e.f. July 15, 2024. The registered office of the Company is located at P.NO-1 TF SECTOR-12-B, Dwarka Sec-6, South West Delhi, India, 110075. The
Company is a manufacturer of a wide range of products which include cyst & abscess removal trainer, infant io leg, polymerised rubber facesime, pvc
human anatomical models and human anatomical models along with trading of software.

The company was incorporated on September 04, 2023 and on December 15, 2023 a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) was executed between the
company & Maverick Solution Inc. All the details regarding the same have been disclosed inNote no. 41.

2 Basis of Preparation & Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance
These financial statements of the Company comply with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or
previous GAAP). The Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with Ind AS for the first time on
voluntary basis. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flow
of the Company is provided in financial statements (Refer Note no. 39).
(ii) Basis of measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value:
« Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
« Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees or “INR™ and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs (as per requirement of Schedule I11), unless otherwise stated.
(iii) Current vs Non-current classification
Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has determined
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 Material Accounting Policies

2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the
purchase price, net of trade discounts and rebates, directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and capitalised
borrowing costs. When significant parts of the plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.
Depreciation is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives of assets. Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for its intended use. The
management’s estimate of useful lives are in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, other than the asset classes, where the useful lives
was determined by technical evaluation. Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on additions to / deductions from assets is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / deletion.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each financial year end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The useful life is as follows:

ANt Useful life (in years)
Plant & Machinery 3
Vehicles 3
Office equipment 3
= : Computers 3
OLUTIONS LTD {AVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD:
For MAVERICK SIMULATION'S For AVERICK SMULATON SOLTICAS LT
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On transition to Ind AS. the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value as per the previous GAAP for Property, plant and equipment as its
deemed cost as on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Eor MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTC. For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.
\»“\ Directer Director
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired and also whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

«In the caseof an individual asset, atthe higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use; and

«In the case of the cashgenerating unit (a groupof assets that generatesidentified, independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s (CGUs)
fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

* Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares, loose tools and traded goods at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first in
first out basis.

* Work-in-progress andfinished goods (manufacturing) at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Finished goods cost is determined on first in first out basis.

The cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Obsolete and slow moving items of inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower, Goods and Materials in transit are
valued at actual cost incurred up to the reporting date. Materials and supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down if the
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to mak
the sale.

Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition:
Transactions in foreign currencies entered are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Measurement as at balance sheet date:
Foreign currency monetary items that are outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at year end exchange rates. Non-monetary items carried at
historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transactions.

Treatment of exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized as income or expense in the

statement of profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from sale of goods and services:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with the
delivery of goods to customers. Revenue from services is recognised when services are rendered.

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Revenue is recognised when such freight services are rendered. Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits,
price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, penalties or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception updated thereafter at each reporting date or until crystallisation of the amount.

(b) Interest Income
[nterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO. For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.
- =

lirector 2
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2.2.7 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services.
are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc. and the
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the benefits expected in exchange for the
related services.

Post-employment benefits

Defined Contribution Scheme:
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the

contributions.

Defined benefit plans:
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method with the actuarial valuations being carried

out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to the profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period of plan amendment or when the Company
recognised related re-structuring costs.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit expenses in profit or loss:

« service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs. gains and losses on curtailments and settlements;

* net interest expense or income,

Gratuity:

The cost of providing benefit under gratuity plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date
The scheme is funded. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in other comprehensive income in the reporting
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Leave encashment:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes.
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the statement of profit and loss.

Termination benefits:
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefits or when the Company

recognises any related restructuring costs whichever is earlier.

2.2.9 Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares), if any, occurred during the reporting year, that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.

{ W For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
"l \csl?

Director
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2.2.10 Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except when
they are relating to items that are recognised in OC1 or directly in equity, in which case, it is also recognised directly in OCI or equity respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected income tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years, It is determined by using tax rates in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

2.2.11 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of these cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of
amount cannot be made.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Warranty provisions
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are recognised at the time of sale of relevant product or service, at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Company’s obligation.

2.2.12 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk. A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant tothe fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant tothe fair value measurement is unobservable.

2.2.13 Exceptional ltems
An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an understanding of the performance of the
Company is treated as an exceptional items and disclosed as such in the Financial Statements.

For MAVERICK SiMULATION SOLUTIONS LT0
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2.2.14 Financial instruments
The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(i) Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety either at amortised cost or at fair value depending on the classification of the

financial assets.

Where financial assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through
profit or loss or *EVTPL"), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income or *FVTOCI).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCT if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represents solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit
and loss. Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

« The 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date): or

+ Full lifetime expectedcredit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables the Company applies a simplified approach under which loss allowance is recognised based on expected lifetime ECL losses to be
recognised on each reporting date. The Company uses a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience adjusted for relevant forward-
looking factors. For other assets, the Company uses 12 months ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. 1f
there is significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, full lifetime ECL is used.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

MULATION SOLUTIONS LT _
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(ii) Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities, which
are not at fair value through profit or loss, are deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or

modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
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2.3 Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of The Financial Statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of The Financial Statement and results
of operations during the reporting period. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of The Financial Statement are prudent and
reasonable. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are shown /materialised.

i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Company assesses the remaining useful lives of property, plant and equipment on the basis of internal technical estimates. Management
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. Refer Note no 3.

i) Income taxes:
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses will be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, Refer to Note no 17.

iii) Defined benefit plans and Other Long-Term Benefits:
The cost of the defined benetit plan and other long-term benefit and their present value are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The most sensitive is
discount rate. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Refer to Note no 34.

iv) Contingent liabilities:
Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. The management believes the estimates are reasonable
and prudent.

v) Revenue Recognition
The Company estimates variable considerations in the nature of volume rebates, discounts, performance bonuses, penalties and
similar items and adjusts the transaction price for the sale of goods and services. These expected variable considerations are analysed
either at customer or contracts basis against agreed terms with customers and may differ from actual results. Reference to Note no 32,

vi) Provision for doubtful receivables and contract assets:
In assessing the recoverability of the trade receivables and contracts assets, management’s judgement involves consideration of aging status,
evaluation of litigations and the likelihood of collection based on the terms of the contract. Reference to Note no 32

vii) Estimation of net realisable value of inventories:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and Fair value. In estimating the net realisable value/ Fair value of Inventories, the Company makes an
estimate of future selling prices and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period. If the revision affects
both current and future year, the same is recognised accordingly.
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounis are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment #
a. Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Plant & Machinery Vehicles Office equipment Computers Total
Gross carrying values
As at September 04, 2023
Deemed cost as at 04 Scptember 2023 - - - - -
Transler on of Scl of Busi Transfer Ag - 53.52 79.97 1.1 134.60
Additions for the year - - - - -
Disposals/capitalisations for the year - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 53.52 79.97 111 134.60
Additions [or the year 407.53 132.53 539 203 54748
Disposals/capitalisations for the vear’ : 53.52 28.01 L1l 82.64
As at March 31, 2025 407.53 132.53 57.35 2.03 599.44
Accumulated depreciation
As at September 04, 2023 - . - - -
Transler on account of Scheme of Business Transler Agreement - 42.65 42.12 - 84.77
Chargc for the year - 0.38 1.91 0.10 2.39
Disposals for the ycar - - - - -
As at March 31,2024 - 43.03 44.03 0.10 87.16
Charge for the vear 0.72 0.09 1.92 031 3.04
Disposals for the year - 43.03 1.43 0.10 44.56
As at March 31,2025 0.72 0.09 44.52 031 45.64
Net carrying values
As at September 04, 2023 - - - - 5
As at March 31,2024 - 10.49 35.94 1.01 4744
As at March 31,2025 406.81 132.44 12.83 1.72 553.80

o -

E'S

During the year, the company has clected Ind AS 101 exemption to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property Plantand Equipment at deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Refer note 15(1) - Property, plant and equipment are pledged or given as security or under lien.

The Company does not have any benami proy and no pt dings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property, under the B i T tions (Prohibitions) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thercunder.

The Company has not revalucd its property, plant and cquipment during the current reporting year or any of the preceding financial years.

On Ist April 2024, the management carried out an asscssment of the Property, Plant and Equipment and identified certain asscts that had become obsolete. Accordingly, the carrying amount of such assets has
been written off during the year and charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Maverick Sinmulation Solutivos Limited (formerly known s Maverick Simulation Selutions Private Limited)
Notes to the fimancial statementy for the year ended March 31, 2025
(AL awouats ar 1 lnden? Lakd cxcept shire dat oml s steted )

4 Loams'
Asat Asat Asat
Farscaluey March 31, 2028 Ma 4 Septemher 64,2023
Corrent
(Unsecureal, comidered good)
Loon & Advances to others 497,63 21593
Loan & Advances 1o shareholders 5350 S0.00
Loan & Advances 1o promoters 234,00 24475
Loan & Advances 1o related pany 33136 - -
Sub-tatal (b [WERATS 51068 3

Deatly of laans or advances 1 the nanure of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMP's and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) enther severally or joinly with any athet person, are as follows:

Amount Omstanding %410 the 1ol loans and advances in the
natre of loans
Particalary
Asat Asat Asat As at Asar Asat
M 3 S Mlarch 31,2024 September 04, 2023 March 31, 2023 Aluech 31,2024 September 04, 2023
n) Repayable on demand |
Promuters 25469 24478 - 2240% A7.93% 0.00%
dueetors . - - 000" Gl V0.
Key magageriol persounc - - 0.0 AR Do
Othier pefaned partics = 18] Suo0 = 33 84% YN V.00t
s FITED B S624% 12 o0%
Dutes;
I Allloans & advauces are on demand pod are beanng.
2 Refor note 38 for dscloure of related pacty bulances es at coch ieporting dutes.
& Other financhal asscts
Particulury Asat Ay at Asut
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2024 Sel v (4, 20
Non-current
Nank deposit with maturity foe more than | 2 manthy from the 17342 16762
reporting date™*
Earnest Money Deposit Security Deposs’ 2884 2984 .
202.26 197.46 N
el 2
Current
(Unsecured, comsidered goud)
Pamest Moncy Depesit’ Sceunity Depost’ 18227 3972 -
Lesy: Atlow ance for Credit Loss Impaired (743 (3.23) -
2] J6d) :
Sccunty deposit - others 0.23 0 -
Other Recevables 34y . Lao
178.55 36.72 1.00

Dofes:

Refer note 35 for disclosure of faur value in respect of financial assets measuzed at cost and disch for financial risk

The whose deposit are held es security with benk against bosrow iigs, guanutee given and ssuacce of leer of creditand other commaments

Tt includes the DD issucd at the time of epplying for tenders which sre later converted to Perfurmence Rank Guarmtees (PRGy). As por mimagement’s
assessient, the amounts ave fully ble and, 1 no i liability has been recop: 10 respect thereot.

4 Refer Note $1(v) for assets and overdraft facilities which are taken in the books of the company and the resultant benefils acome to the company solely
although the swme has not yet been transfered i the Company’s name.

DU

& Curvent Tay sssctsliahlilties (wet)
Particulars Asat Asamt Asat
March 31, 2028 March 31,2024 September 04, 2023
Provision for tax (Nt of prepad tuxes) (757.70) (660.19) -
(757.70) ﬂ. 19) =
7 Other assets
Particnlars Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 Murch 31,2024 September 04,2033
Current
ilmsecured, considered goods
Advances 10 supphers’ 969,33 115413
Balances with statutory authorities 10,00 27113
Trepand expenses 1,50 -
Other Recevables 40748 101247 -
[FETET]) 249373 3

1 Refer note 38 for dusclosure of rebased pasty belaoces us ot cach reporting dutes.

8 Iuventories’
Particolury Avut Avat Asat
Narch 11, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Walwed ut lovver of cont and net reatisable valee unfess othervine statod)
Raw moteeils 139 .
Frvivhad goods 144295 281534 :
144434 EXTEXT] -
—
Notes:
1(2)  Theubove meludes goods in transit as ander
Raw mmntersals
Finished goods 1.086,78 RXUSA L
I(b)  The above includes poods at Customn warchotse as under:
Fimshed goods 16475
2 Inventones lying m stock for mons this 1 year contue 10 have net realisable sl more tiss cost. Accondingly, such inventorics heve been volued st cost

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
1Al amornts are in Indian 2 lakh except share dota and as stated)

9 ‘I'rade receivables
Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

‘Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 10.338.90 513.42
10.538.90_ 513.42 -
Notes:
o) Trade reccivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025
Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less thun 6 6 months to 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs More than 3 years
months 1 year
Undisputed
Unsccored, considered good - 3,249.59 81202 447729 - - 10,538 90
Unsceured, eredit impared - - - - - - -
- 5.249.59 81202 4477.29 - - 10.538.90
Allowance for expected credit loxs -
- 5.249.59 812.02 447729 - - 10.538.90
‘Irade recelvables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months to 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs More than 3 years
months 1 year
Undisputed
Unyecored. considered good - 51342 . - - - 51342
Unsecured. credit impaired - - - - - - -
- 513.42 - - - - 51342
Allowance for expected credit loss -
- 513.42 - - - - 513.42
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at September 4. 2023
Particulars Not Duc Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months 1 year
Undisputed
Unsecured, considered good - - - -
Unsccured. credit impaured - - -
Allowance for expected credit loss
b) Refer note 35 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets d at cost and discl for financial nsk management.
) Trade reccivables represent the amount of consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customers that is unconditional,
&) Based on the past trend, company has not incurred any credit losses. Therefore, no all for expected credit loss has been provided,
¢) As per the BTA, Maverick Solution Inc had applied for tenders prior 10 the Agreement date for which the ordens were received subsequent 1o the Agr duge. A s pertaining to those orders shall be
paid back by Mavenc Solution Inc as & when received fram end customens. Further Maverick Solution Ine has received the confi from Di of Mcdical Fducation and R h for Rs.
399041 lakhs as on 31st March 2025,
) Refer note 38 for disclosure of related party balances as at each reporting dates,
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at As at
arch 31,2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Balance with banks in current accounts 651.72 336.68 -
Cheques, drafts on hand - 3.09 -
Cash on hand 7240 17.26 .
72412 357.03 -
1) Refer note 38 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets d ar cost and di for I risk 2

11 Other bank balances
Particulars

As ut As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

Margin Money
Bank deposits account with remaining maturity for less than 12 momté™ 117.21 106,65 -
117.21 106.65 S

Notes:

The above deposit are held as security with bank against borrowings. guarantee given and issuance of fetter of credit and other commitments

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months but remaining maturity of less than 12 months have been disclosed under other bank balances

Refer Note 41(v) for assets and overdraft facilities which are taken in the books of the company and the resultunt benefits acerue 1o the company solely although the same hax not yet been nunsferred in the
Company's name,

D -

|
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Maverick Simulation Solutions | imited (formerly knawn as \\uwrld. Stmulation Solutions Private | mited)
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended
(AU amuty are i budion & ladh cveepr share daty ami as saae M:

12 _Equity Share Cupital
Particulary Asat Asat Asut
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 her
Authurised
$5,00,000 (Ntarch 31, 2024 50,00,000 and Scpremiber 05, 2023 1,50,000) canity shares of 230 gach 35000 500.00 1500
ssucd, subscribod and fully paid up
A7.67.276 (March 31, 2024 47,87,276 and September 04, 2023 10,000) equity shates of 10 sk tally gaid wp 4573 47873 100
ﬂh’l{ 475,73 I.&
12,1 Reconciliation of number of sharcs:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Asut March 31, Illd As at September 014, 2023
Numher of shares Ameunt Number of shures Number of shares Amount
Equity shaves ut the beginning of the yeur 47,5727 4% 10,000 10,000
1ssacd duning the year —_—rar s l?‘ 7! =
Total Fquity shares af the end of fhe year 41&1570 J‘li‘" "ﬁ’én 478.73 100

122 Vermy/rights attached to cquity shares:

The Company has only one class of cquicy sharcs baving a par valie of # 10 per share, kach bolder of cquiy shars is entitled 1o 0ng Voic per shars. In the cvent of hawdation of the Company, the holder of cquity shares will be entitled to rescive

all Tiabalities. The distniby will be 1w 10 the

remmmnang aoets of the Compary, o

umber of equity shares held by the shurehuders. The Commuany i rot devluse any dividend on equnty shares during sny of the reporting

period. The dividend, f proposed by Hoand of 1ircetors, is subjcet 10 the approval of sharcholders In the Anmual Geesora) Mecting.

12,3 Detalls of holding morc than 5% of sharc capital n the Company

Partiakins a1t March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 tember 04, 2023

Aumber of shures i) of shures S of sk *a hold

) Equity Skare Capltal

Amj Chatial 3741459 78.05% 193175 22.65% 4250 42.50%

Kantha Chakal 425 0.09% 4250 s 4250 42.50%

Swan Gupta 38508 1.28% 39,405 125% 1.500 1S00%
12.4 Disclosure of prometer’s sharchokiing :

As af March 31, 2028 Av af March 31,2024 As at S ber 04, 2023

Name of the prowmoters Number of shures "4 of tutal shures o of chunge Numbier of shures % of tutul shares e uf chanyge Number of shares % of totul shures *a of change

Awgj Chahal 3741459 TROS% EELN 39.31,780 8205% 94 487 4250 43 50% -

Kanika Chabal 4250 DO - 4250 0.09% 9079 4280 42 M -

12,5 Aggregate oumber of bonus shares issied, shures issaed for comsideration ather than cash and shares hought back duriag the peciud of five years o less immediately preceding the reparting d

1he company bas neither 1ssucd bonks sheres not has bought back any shares during last § year.

recclved from

Dbeneficial Interest, The above sharcholding represents both legal and beneflckal owmerships

12,6 Ay per the record of Company, Including its regisier of sharchelder/ wenibers and ather
shares

12.7 Shures issued fur Consideration uther thun Cash
During the firancial year 2023.24, parsuaet 1o the Basiness Transfer Agreement, the Company wssued 39,27,
cash

800 equity shares af 210 each, tully peidsup, 1o Mr. Anwg Chahial (swle propnetor of Maverck Solutions Inc ) for considerntion other than

13 Iustruments Kntircly Equity in Nature
Particulars

A
mbor 04, 2023

Asat

Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Authurised
S00000 0.01% Compulserily Coavenibe Preferencs Shares of 2 10 each

tysued, subscribied and fully paid up
1.56.575 0,01 Compuborily Conventible Preference Shares of 2 10 exch - fully peid up

13,1 Reconciliation of Instruments entirely equity In natur.

$0.00

1506
i

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024
Numiber of sharey Amount

As at March 31, 2018
Number of shares Amapnt

As at September 04, 2023
Number of shares Amount

Balance ut the heginniog of the yeu
Ihaned duning the yeat

15008 - -

Total CCPS ut the ead of the yeur

15.66

13.2_8 than 3% af uments enl

Particolars

2

M
Number of shures s holding

T
Yash Foddar

Sunva Family Office

Green Incubatoes Prvate Limized
Capnze Eminence

1 il »

13.3 Dis in €.
None uflh « wvlnml; CM.Nr Proforemey Mu(‘( B of the. < oy are held by the prowseicns,

134 Teron/rights uttached toe CCPS:

8,146
19517
23,587
mns

5.84%
1266%
15.06%
17.71%

Dering the year, the Compary has issued 1,586,575 Compulsorily Conyertible Preference Shurex (“COPS™) of fisce value? 10 each st a premium of 21,630 per shore, nggregaing to € 28,673,000, The CCPS are compulsorily convertible into ey
shares mmm\oo” 1 aficr completion of one year from the respective date of alloteent Such COPS have been ssmied 10 cxasting investors, and now mvestors. e sh va ividend af the raze of 0.01% nee anam, payobic
anly o dexlured

I accortance with the terms of sue. each CCPS confers an its holder the right 1o recenve notice of, stiend, and vote at general mectngs of the Compary. The vuting nghts are equvalent t0 ooe vote per CUPS hehl, on 2 deemed convenned bisss, us
if the COMS were already convenied into equity sharcs. | hese rights. referred 10 a5 “Relevant Rights™. arc pan passu with the rights of cauity sharcbalders and arc treated as a spocial tight attacked 1 the CCPS. Accondingly, any manice affectng the
rigbts of equiry sharcholders shall cawally affect CCPS holders

Upoa coaversion. 1he resuliaar cquity shares shall canry approximasclyv 274 of the tatal vating righs of the Company.

"

Purticulurs Asat A at
March 31, 2025 ember 04, 2023
Reserves anid surphiy
Securities Premium 433285 1.9%6.1% -
Ketamed camings 1576.63 ssa A
Other Camprehersine Incomie 070 x <
9.208.77 2080.72 -
— —

Nature and purpesc of reserves:
) Securities Prominm
The amount receivesd i eacess of face value uf the equity shares & share is
The tssmc expenses of securities which qualify as cquity imstniments a7 writlon off agaimst scelrity premmu,
simed caruings
cd camings represents mdistribiged profies of the Company which can be d
ampreheasive Incume
ol uther comprehensive inceme convist of resmeasarement of detined benefit Babality (aet of e}

i entible J s security premmm. The reserses will be utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Compumies Act, 2013

by with Compamics Act, 2013
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian 2 lakh except share data and as stated)

IS Borrowings

Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Non-current
Secured
~Term loans from NBFC*** 1.109.74 - -
1,109.74 - g
Less: Current Maturities of Term loan from NBFC (8.38) - -
L101.36 - :
Current:
Secured from banks
-Bank overdraft’ 352.10 394,97 =
352.10 394.97 -
Add: Current Maturities of Term loan from NBFC 8.38 - -
360.48 39497 -
Unsecured from others
-Loans From related parties” ** - 17.36 -
-Loans From Director’ ** 721.86 - -
~Loans From Shareholder* 114.55 82.05 -
-Other Loans' 5.00 290.58 -

1,201.89 784.96 -

Notes:

Security details

The Term Loan of Rs. 1000 Lakhs comprises outstanding balances of various term loans taken under Credit Facilities availed from Findoc Finvest Private
Limited(“Term Loan™) are repayable after 36 months.

-

b) The car finance loan of Rs, 100 Lakhs comprises outstanding balance of Various loans taken under Credit Facilities availed are repayable in 48 installements

The Term loan is secured by exclusive charge on respective vehicle.

-~

The secured Short Term Borrowings, comprising Working Capital Loan and Short Term Cash Credit (“Borrowings™), these are secured by exclusive charge
on the commercial property of company’s directors, entire current assets & entire movable fixed assets of the company, both present and future and
furthermore the loan is additionally secured by Guarantee provided by Company’s directors to the extent of entire exposure and for the entire tenor of the
Credit Facilities.

c

Refer note 38 for disclosure of related party balances as at each reporting dates.

Refer note 35 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at cost and disclosures for fi

All loans & advances are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.

Based on the confirmation received from Findoc Finvest Private Limited, the amount of Rs 1000 lakhs is recoverable as a term loan. Additonally, the
pany has an arr with Findoc Finvest Private Limited whereby the said loan is optionally convertible into equity shares, however there is no

significant uncertainty with regards to the conversion.

6 Reconciliation between the opening and cl bal

from cash flows and non-cash changes:

risk

B

D ]

&)

in the Bal Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising

Asat As at As at

SRR March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

a) Long-term borrowings
Balance at the beginning of the year - - B
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,100.00 - -
Repayment of long-term borrowings - = o
Finance cost accrued during the year 9.74 - 5
Finance cost paid during the year - w 3
Balance at the end of the year 1,109.74 - -

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
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a) Short-term borrowings

Balance at the beginning of the year 784.96 - -
Movement in short term-borrowings (net) 408.55 784.96 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,193.51 784.96 -
16 Provisions
Paitlcilars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Non-current:
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity' 4.67 -
Compensated absences” 0.96 = -
Total 5.63 - -
Current:
Provision for employee benefits:
Grawity' 0.73 2 -
Compensated absences” 0.25 z >
Total 0.98 - -
Notes:
1 Refer note 34(a) for further disclosure related to employee benefit obligations.
2 Refer note 34(b) for further disclosure related to employee benefit obligations.
17 Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (net)
Pirticilars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Tax effects of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and 2.55
intangible assets as per books of accounts and income-tax
Total (a) 2.55 - 5
—
Tax effects of items constituting deferred tax assets
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and - -0.49 -
ntangible assets as per books of accounts and income-tax
Profit reverse on sale reversal - 638,17 -
Expected Credit Loss on EMD/Security Deposits 1.27 0.81 -
Provision for employee benefits 1.13 -
Total (b) 2.41 6=3é49 -
Net (a-b) (0.14) 638.49 -
18 Other liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023
Current:
Advance from customers 10.09 857.56 -
Statutory dues 1,073.25 1,008.62 -
1,083.34 1.866.‘ 18 -
For MAVERICK SIMUL! ATION SOLUTIONS LiL.
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Solutions Linited (fe Known us Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial starements for the year ended March 31, 2025
1Al ammounts ave i dndion 3 lakl exeept shave dara and as wated)

19 Trade pavables

Asat Asat Asat

ciniisbanid March 31,2025 March 31,2024 September 04, 2023

Total iy duvex of i ises and small s (refer note (1) below) 47865 4172 -

Towl owstanding dues to creditors mher than P and small P 1.29747 2.649 41 -

Total 177612 269113 -
Dotes;

9 Trado paysbles sgeing scheduic as ot March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for folla from duc date of pavment
Not due Fess than 1 year 1=2years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

Un-disputed

Towl dues of micra and small . 47865 - - B A78.65
Total outstanding due of creditors other thaa micro enterpnises and small eaterprises - 46253 ERER . - 129747
Dispated

Towl ding dues of micro and small - - . - . -
Total cutstandiog due of creditors other than micro P and small - - - - - -

- LIRS $34.94 - = 1.776.12
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 3, 2024
Outy for follo: riods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than | year 1-2years 2. 3years Marc than 3 years Total
Un-disputed

Toul dues of micro and small . 4mn - - . 41.712
Total g due of craditors other than mic pei d syl priv - 264000 . - - 264941
Disputed

Total ding dues of micro eaterprises wud small i - - . . . »
Totul outstunding due of croditors ether tan ni i d seoall pri - - - . - &

s 260103 - - = 2.691.13
T ables ing sch as at S e 04, 21
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of pay ment -

Farticulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Un-disputed

Total dinp dues of micra P and small - B - - - &
Fotal outstwnding due of craditors other thun mi priscs and small pri; - - - - - -
Disputed 2

Total dues of micro and amall ™ - . - - - .
Total autstanding duc of creditors other than micro prisex wmd srsall pri - - - - - %

) Disclosurcs required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED') Act, 20061
Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Exterprizes Developrent ¢ MSMED') Act, 2006 as at reporting date is piven helow. This informatson lias been determined to the extent such
partes have been identi fied on the basis of infurmution availuble with the Company

Asat Asat Asat
Particulsrs Mareh 31,2028 March 31,2024 September 04, 2023
Principal wmount wnd interest due theroon remsining unpad (o wry supplicr coverad umder
MSMED Act, 2006:
Principal 95162 an

Iterest 012 -
The amount of iaterest paid by tse buyer in terms of section 16, of the MSMED Act. 2006 along with the smounts of the payment made 1o the supplier bevond the “

appointed diy during cach accounting year

1he amount of interest due und payable for the pesiod of delay i meaking pasment (whech kave been paid but beyood the appuinted day dusing the yeur) but without - - -
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act. 2006

The amount of intenest sccrved and remainmg unpasd ar the end of each accounting year - -

The amonnt of fusther ineres! renwining dus and payable even la (he suceealing yoars, until such date when the infesest dues w abose wre actually paid to the sawall - - -
cnterprise for the purpose of disall s @ doductibl Jidure umder section 23 of e MSMED Act 2006

iif) Refer note 35 for disclosure of fair value m respect of financial assets measured at cost and disclosures for financial risk management.
V) Kefer note 38 for duclosire ol refated party bafances as ot vach reporting dates.

20 Other financial liabilities

= Asar Asat

Particulars - R

Current:

Emplayee related payahiles' 65.56 7051

Capiual goods vendor 47837 " <

Refundable share spplication money 012 - ’

Unacstled CSR Fxpenses Mol . -

Expeme payable 119.26 ¥71.74 -

Cther Payahles’ 012 - -
T17.44 158.25 -

Notes;

1 Ameunt includes Director Remuncration.

2 Refer note 3% for disclosure of related party balances as ot ench reporung daes
3 Otbers mcluding Intan MSME Payables

4 Amount nclade MSME payables of Ry 474 97 Takhs

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
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Director




Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian 2 lakh except share data and as stated)

21

a)

b)

22

23

24

25

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Revenue from sale of goods®

Manufactured Goods 13,291.58 1,325.61

Traded Goods 290.00 86.77
Revenue from sale of services

Sale of Services 49.23 9.85

13,630.81 1.422.23

Notes:

Refer note 32 for disaggregation of revenue from operations and other disclosures as per Ind AS 115.

All the goods traded by the company have a warranty period ranging between 1 year to 5 years. However, as per the past data no major expenses have been

incurred pertaining to warranty. Therefore, no provision for warranty is required to be made.

Refer note 38 for disclosures of related party transactions.

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Interest income 18.17 0.02
Loan Balance written off 185.66 -
Other non-operating income
- Foreign currency transactions and translations (net) 47.10 22.66
- Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 4.62 -
255.58 22.68

Cost of materials consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials, packing materials and components
Opening stock - -
Add: Purchases* 3,383.54 4,747.30
Less: Closing stock (1.39) -
3,382.15 4,747.30
*refer note 38 for disclosures of related party transactions.
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases* 266.77 78.66
266.77 78.66

*refer note 38 for disclosures of related party transactions.

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 3.815.54 -
3.815.54 @

ventories at the end of the year:

s

MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.



Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian 3 lakh except share data and as stated)

Finished goods 1.442.95 3.815.54
1,442.95 3,815.54
Net (increase) / decrease 2,372.59 (3,815.54)

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LT
For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOL OLUTIONS LTD.
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

26

27

28

29

1

Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages. bonus and other benefits 349.69 113.26
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 4.28 -
Staff welfare expense 241 0.04
356.38 113.30

Notes:
Refer note 38 for disclosures of related party transactions.
Refer note 34(a) and 34(b) for further disclosure related to employee benefit obligations.

Finance cost
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest expense on:

- Loan from Banks 71.48 14.75

- on Statutory Dues 209.81 -

- MSME Payables 0.12 -

Processing charges 255 -
283.96 14.75

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 3.03 2,39
3.03 2.39

Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rent expense 120.00 18.00
Repair & maintenance
- Plant and machinery 0.89 -
- Buildings 231 -
Insurance 6.13 0.80
Advertisment and business promotion 72.29 8.54
Sales Commission 52.20 -
Travelling and conveyance 200.05 57.33
Legal and professional charges 104.93 70.49
Payment to auditors

- As statutory auditors 6.00 1.50

- As tax auditors 1.50 -
Loan & Advances balances written off 313.99 -
Property Plant & Equipment written off 35.83 -
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 37) 54.01 -
Custom Warehouse Expenses 33.58 -
Expected credit loss - Earnest Money Deposit/ Security Deposit 4.20 3.23
Other general expenses 82.70 17.68

1.090.61 177.57

Notes:
Refer note 38 for disclosures of related party transactions.
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in Indian  lakh except shave data and as stated)

30 Tax expense

a)

b

3

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

The income fax expense consist of the following

Tax expensc:
Current tax
Deferred tax (net)

Total tax expensc recognised in statement of profit and loss (A

Tax impact i
Total (A+B+C)

d in other P!

hensive income on remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (C)

Reconciliation of tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate to income tix expense reported is as follow:

Profit for the year

At statutory income tax rate.
Adjustments on account of:
Permanent Disallowance

Tax impact on Ind As conversion

Tax impact due to decrease of Tax rate from 22% to 15%

Other adjustments
Total tax expense (A)

Movement in deferred tax (assets)/liahilitics for the year ended March 31, 2025:

710.00 670.44
638.78 (638.49)
1.348.78 31.95
(0.15)
1.348.63 31.95
6,130.87 126.49
17.16% 25.168%
1,052.06 31.83
93.34 .
s 0.1
203.16 #
0.08 :
1.348.63 31.95

2 &ASSod; - MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.

(lirector

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD

-t

Director

Particulars Asat Charged/(credited) to (Charged)/eredited to As at
March 31,2024 statement of profit  other comprehensive March 31, 2025
and loss income
Deferred tax liabilitics on account of:
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per ) 255 555
books of accounts and income-tax o i
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss - - <
Provision for Warrantee-Reversal - - -
Total deferred tax liabilities: - 2.55 - 2.55
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per (0.49) 049 . X
books of accounts and income-tax .
Profit reversal due to sale reversal 638.17 (638.17) - -
Provision for employee benefits - 0.98 0.15 113
Provision for litigation - - -
Provision/impairment for doubtful receivables, loans and advances 0.8) 0.46 1.27
Total deferred tax assets: 638.49 636.23 .15 2.41
Net deferred tax liabilitics/| ) reflected in the bal. sheet (638.49) 638.78 (0.15) 0.14_
Movement in deferred tax fliabilitics for the year ended March 31, 2024:
Particulars Asat Charged/(credited) to  (Charged)/eredited to As at
September 04, 2023 statement of profit  other comprehensive March 31, 2024
and loss income
Deferred tax liabilitics on account of:
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Provision for Warrantee-Reversal - - - -
Total deferred tax liabilities: - - - ®
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Difference between written down value of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets as per
books of accounts and income-tax B (©.49) 0.49)
Profit reversal due to sule reversal 63817 638.17
Provision for employee benefits - - -
Provision/impairment for doubtful receivables, loans and advances - 0.81 0.81
Total deferred tax assets: - 638.49 - 638.49
Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) reflected in the balance sheet - (6._18.4')) - |638.49l
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
Earning per share ("EPS')
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2024
Profit for the year attributable to share holders 4,782.09 94.54
Profit attributable to share holders 4.7&&.09 94.54
Weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year (in numbers) 49.13.851 23.92,304
Weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of above outstanding at the end of the year (in numbers) 49,13,851 2392304
Farning Per Share (in )
- Basic 97.32 395
- Diluted 97.32 3.95



Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

32 Disclosures as per Ind AS 115

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit

Revenue as per contracted price 13.630.81 1,422.23
Less: Rebates and discounts - -
Total revenue from contract with customers 13,630.81 1,422.23
Add : Export incentives - -
Total revenue from operations 13.630.81 1.422.23

B Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 13,581.58 1.412.38
Services transferred over the time 49.23 9.85
Total revenue from contract with customers 13,630.81 1.422.23
Add : Export incentives - -

Total revenue from operations 13.630.81 1.422.23

C Contract balances

- Contract assets 10.538.90 513.42

- Contract liabilities' 10.09 857.56

1. The contract liabilities are in form advance received from customer for which the obligation of supply of goods and services is not completed at the year end
and the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligation (unsatisfied performance obligation) pertaining to sales of goods and services.

D Movement in contract liabilities

Opening balance of contract liabilities 857.56 -
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for year 10.09 857.56
Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (857.56) -
Closing balance of contract liabilities 10.09 857.56

E Geographical Revenue
The Company's main revenue is from sale of all kinds of simulators and instrumentation for medical education and healthcare education activities

Revenue from external customers For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 13.627.34 1,422.23
Outside India 3.47 -
Total revenue 13,630.81 1,422.23

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Z lakh except share data and as stated)

33 Commitments and contingencies

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023

(a) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
Claims / suits filed against the company not acknowledged as debts

Goods & Scrvices Tax® 107.91 29.09 -
(b) Guarantee 459.90 499,60 -
Note:

* The contingent liability disclosed above pertains to GST matters relating to Maverick Solutions Inc. In accordance with the Business Transfer
Agreement (BTA), the liability in respect thereof shall be settled by Maverick Simulations Solutions Limited (the company).

As per clause 6.2 (¢)(i) Discharge of Statutory Liabilities of BTA:

Any liability relating to the business such as GST or any statutory law in force which relates to the period prior to the completion date
(December 14, 2023) shall be the liability of the Successor and will solely be dealt with by the Successor only, even if the same arises after
the completion date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

34 Employee benefit obligations

a) Gratuity -defined benefit plans
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, as defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment
(0 the employees at the time of separation from the service on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years. The liability of gratuity plan is provided based
on actuarial valuation as at the end of each financial year based on which the Company contributes the ascertained liability to Life Insurance Company Limited with
whom the plan assets are maintained.

>

Policy for recognizing actuarial gains and losses:

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plan arising from experience adjustments and effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognized in
other comprehensive income. The defined benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

Interest rate risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government security rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision, A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix
of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Longevity risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Salary increase risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members
more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

B. The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations for the funded plan were as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023
Discount rate 6.75% - -
Future salary increase 5.00% - -
Mortality rate TALM 2012-14 - -
Retirement Age 60.00 - -
Attrition / Withdrawal rates 10.00% - -

)

/
/

C. Amounts recognised in the restated statement of profit and loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows.

Particulars For the year ending For the year ending
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 4.54 -

Interest cost A =
Interest income on plan assets i a
Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 4.54 -

Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to
-change in financial assumptions 0.86
-return on assets

0.86 -
D. The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of the its defined benefit plan is as follows.
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 5.40 . -
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - - -
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 5.40 - -

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.
(‘w
Director \uw/ -

Director




Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

E.

=

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows

Particulars For the year ending  For the year ending Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023

Change in defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year - - -

Current service cost 4.54 - -
Interest cost - - -
Benefits paid - - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) 0.86 - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 5.40 - -
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023
Within next | year 0.73 - -
Between 2-6 years 0.37 - -
More than 6 years 4.30 - -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and employee turnover. The

sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant. The result are given as below:

Discount rate

Decrease in defined benefit obligation if discount rate increases by 1% (0.30) - -
Increase in defined benefit obligation if discount rate decreases by 1% 0.34 - -
Future salary increase

Increase in defined benefit obligation if salary increases by 1% 0.34 - -
Decrease in defined benefit obligation if salary decreases by 1% (0.31) - -
Attrition/ withdrawal rates

Decrease in defined benefit obligation if attrition rate increases by 1% (0.16) - -
Increase in defined benefit obligation if attrition rate decreases by 1% 0.16 - -

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant and may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would oceur in isolation of another as some of the assumption may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present
value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date .which is the same method as applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis from prior years.

Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ending For the year ending
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Employer's contribution to Gratuity Expense* 4.54

*included in note 26 - Employee benefit expenses under 'Salaries, wages, honus and other benefits'.
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in indian < lakh except share data and as stared)

34 Employee benefit obligations

b) Earned Leave - long term employee benefit plan

A. Policy for recognizing actuarial gains and losses:

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plan arising from experience adjustments and effects of changes in i ptions are i iately i

Interest rate risk

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government sceurity rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the

Investment risk

The pmtcm value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yiclds at the end of the
porting period on g bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively
bal d mix of i in g sccuritics, and other debt instruments.

Longevity risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retitement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.
Salary increase risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the future salarics of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members
more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

B. The principal assumptions used for the purposc of the actuarial valuations for the funded plan were as follows:

Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

Discount ratc 6.75% - -
Future salary increase 5.00% - -
Mortality ratc IALM 2012-14 - -
Retirement Age 60.00 - -
Attrition / Withdrawal rates 10% - -
Rate of Leave Availment (per annum) 3.00% - -

C. Amounts recognised in the restated statement of profit and loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows.

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Current service cost 1.00

Interest cost -

Interest income on plan assets -

Total exp recognised in the of profit and loss 1.00 -

Camponents of defined benefit cost recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gains )/losses due to

-change in financial assumptions 0.21 -
M -
. The amount included in the Halance Sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of the its defined benefit plan is as follows.
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 September 04, 2023

Present valuc of defined benetit obligation as at the end of the ycar 1.21 - -
Fair valuc of plan asscts as at the end of the year - -
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 121 - -

\ | |' ] ‘- “
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E. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 04, 2023

Change in defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year -

Current service cost 100
Interest cost -
Bencefits paid -
Actuarial loss ' (gain) 0.21
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,21
G. Significant actuarial ptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are di it rate, exy J salary inc and employ . The
Discount rate
Decrease in defined benefit obligation if discount rate increases by 1% (0.07)
Increase in defined benefit obligation if di t rate d by 1% 0.08
Future salary increase
Increase in defined benefit obligation if salary increases by 1% 0.08
Decrease in defined benefit obligation if salary decreases by 1% (0.07)
Attrition/ withdrawal rates
Increasc in defined benefit obligation if attrition rate increases by 1% 0.01
Deerease in defined benefit obligation if attrition rate decreases by 1% (0.01)
The sensitivity analysis have been d ined based on bly possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.
Defined contribution plan
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Fmployer's contribution to Leave Encashment® 1.21 B

*included in note 26 - Employee benefit expenses under Salarics, wages, bonus and other benfits.

(This space has been hitentionally feft blank)
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202F
(Al amounts are in Indian 2 lakly except shave data and as stated)

35 Fair value measurement and financial instrument:

a. Financial instruments - by category and fair values hicrarchy

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

(i) As on March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement inputs
Note FVTPL Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost
Financial assets
Non-current
- Other financial assets 5 - 202.26 202.26 - 202.26
Current
- Trade receivables® 9 - 10,538.90 10,538.90 - 10,538.90
- Cash and cash equivalents® 10 - 724.12 724.12 - 724.12
- Bank balances other than cash and cash n - 17.21 117.21 - 17.21
equivalents®
- Loans 4 - 1,137.18 113718 - 1,137.18
- Other financial assets* 5 - 178.55 178.55 - 178.55
Total - 12.898.22 12,898.22 - 12,898.22
Financial labilitics
Non-current
- Borrowings# 15 - 1,101.36 1,101.36 - 1,101.36
Current
- Borrowings# 15 - 1,201.89 1,201.89 - 1,201.89
- Trade payables™ 19 - 1,776.12 1,776.12 - 1,776.12
- Other financial liabilities™ 20 - 717.44 717.44 - 717.44
Total - 4,796.81 4.796.81 - 4.796.81
(ii) As on March 31,2024
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement inputs
Note FVTPL Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost
Financial assets
Non-current
- Other financial assets 5 - 197,46 197.46 - 197.46
Current
- Trade receivables® 9 - 513.42 51342 - 51342
- Cash and cash equivalents* 10 - 357.03 357.03 - 357.03
- Bank balances other than cash and cash 11 - 106.65 106.65 - 106.65
cquivalents®
- Loans 4 - 510.68 510.68 - 510.68
- Other fi ial assets* 5 - 36.72 36.72 - 36.72
Total - 1.721.96 1,721.96 - 1,721.96
Financial liabilities
Non-current
- Borrowings# 15 - - - . .
Current
- Borrowings# 15 - 784.96 784.96 - 784.96
- Trade payables® 19 - 2,691.13 2,691.13 - 2,691.13
- Other financial liabilities* 2 - 158.25 158,25 - 158.25
Total - 3.634.34 3,634.34 - 3.634.34
(This space has been imentionally left blank)
(i) As at September 04, 2023
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement inputs
Note FVTPL Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost
Financial assets
Non-current
- Other financial assets 5 - - - - &
Current
- Trade receivables® 9 - - - - -
- Cash and cash equivalents® 10 - - s s >
- Bank balances other than ¢ash and cash I - - - - -
equivalents®
- Loans 4 - - - =3 -
- Other financial assets® 5 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00
Total - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,202

(Al amowms are in Indian % lakh except share data and as stated)

L

Financial liabilitics
Non-current
- Borrowings# 15 - - - - . 2
Current
- Borrowings# 15 - - - - o -
- Trade payables* 19 - - - “ ¥ s
- Other ial liabilities* 20 - - - # % &
[Total - - - - - -

* The carrying amounts of trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, trade payables, and other financial liabilities approximates the fair values, due to their short-term
nature,

Other notes:
There has been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024,

for material i { ts for level 3 items for the year ended March 31, 2025, year ended March 31, 2024 and as af September 4, 2023:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to

Significant unobscryvable inputs [Rchﬁonslug of unobscrvable lngutx to fair valuc |
Weighted average cost of capital (WACC) |A slight change in the WACC used in isolation would result in change in fair value. ]

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

-The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments,

~The fair value of financial Instrument that are not traded in an active market is d ined using valuati hni The Company uses its j
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

to select a method and make assumptions that are

Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

« Credit risk:

» Liquidity risk;

* Market risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Di is responsible for revi g the risk ¢ licies and ing its effectiveness.

The Company's risk 2 policies are blished to identify and analyw the risks fm.cd by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and ¢ Is and to itor risks and adh 1o Jimits. Risk
management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the business activities. The Board of Directors oversees how 8! itors pli risk 2
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk I fi k in relation to the risk faced by the business.

The Board of Di has overall responsibility for the establish and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board of Di has established a risk g policy to identify and

analyze the risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the
business activities.

Risk Exposure arising from Mecasurcment Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, and
and financial assets d at ised cost credit limits.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and
borrowing facilities
Market risk
- Interest risk Borrowings Sensitivity analysis
- Currency risk Trade receivables and trade payables Sensitivity analysis
- Price risk Investments in equity and other securities Sensitivity analysis
i. Credit risk
The i P to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023
(i) Loans 1,137.18 510.68 -
(1i) Trade receivables 10,538.90 513.42 -
(i1i) Cash and cash equivalents 72412 357.03 -
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 117.21 106.65
(v) Other financial assets 38081 234,18 1.00
Credit risk is the risk of ial loss to the Company if a or party to a fi ial i fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits (shown under bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, above) and other financial assets is limited as the Company generally invests in
deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies

The Company closely itors the credit hi of the receivables through internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated
amounts.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that thc Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company’s approach to ging liquidity is (o ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal aud smessed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company's reputation, Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on d d to meet expected servicing of financial
obligations. In addition, the Company has concluded arrangements with well reputed banks, and has unused lines of credit that could be drawn upon, should there bc a need. The Company invests its surplus

funds in bank fixed deposits and liquid investments,

The Company's liquidity 2 process as itored by mcludes the following:
- I)ay to day funding, ged by itoring future cash flows to ensurc that requirements can be met.
M ining rolling fi of the Company s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

iversified credit lines.
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The following tables detail the Company's

8 ¢
contractual interest payments, The contractual malurl() is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

| maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include

As at March 31, 2025

Contractual cash flows

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying amount On demand 0-1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total

(1) Borrowings 2.303.25 - 1,201.89 1,101.36 - 2303.25

(i1) Trade payables 1.776.12 1,776.12 - - 1,776.12

(i1i) Other financial labilities 717.44 717.44 - - 717.44
4.796.81 - 3.695.45 110136 - 4.796.81

As at March 31, 2024 Contractual cash flow

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying amount On demand 0-1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total

(1) Borrowings 784 .96 - 784.96 - - 784.96

(11) Trade payables 269113 - 2,691.13 - - 2,691.13

(1ii) Other financial labilities 158.25 - 158.25 - - 158.25
3.634.34 - 3.634.34 - - 3.634.34

As at September 4, 2023 Contractual cash flow

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying amount On demand 0-1 year 1-5 years >5 years Total

(1) Borrowings - - - - - -

(ii) Trade payables - - - - - -

(ii1) Other financial liabilities - - - - - -

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices  e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices  will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of ial i The

value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk cmslm ¢ instruments, Market nsk is atributable

to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, foreign currency receivables and

. The Comy

y's is exy

i 10 market risk primarily related to foreign

exchange rate risk (currency risk) and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company’s exposure fo market risk is a fmmiun of investing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in

foreign currencies.

a. Exposurc to interest rate risk
The exposure of the Company's borrow ing to interest rate changes as
Particulars

orted to the management at the end of the reportin,

riod are as follows:

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31, 2024

As at September 04,
2023

Variable rate borrowings

352.10

394.97

Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

- lmpact on profit

For the year ended

For the year ended

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
|Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (3.52) (3.95)
Interest rates ~ decrease by 100 basis points 3.52 3.95
- Impact on other equity For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| rates - i by 100 basis points (2.63) (2.96)
2.63 2.96

b. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign :xchange r.ules The Company is cxpnwd to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing

foreign currency ge rates on its fi ial p
operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure (o Forcign currency risk

and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to

h

rate fl

the fi

E

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in 2 are as below:

| currency and other currencies from the Company 's

All amounts in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)

MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO.

) A

Directar

Particulars Curreney As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount
(in foreign currency) (in ) (in foreign currency) (in ¥)
Financial asscts
Trade receivables CHF 0.04 347 - -
Total financial assets 0.04 347
Financial liabilities
Trade payables UsD 0.65 55.85 0.02 1.43
Trade payables CHF 0.56 54,10 1.36 125.48
Trade payables AUD - - 0.04 21
Trade payables GBP 0.08 8.68 - -
Trade payables FUR - - 0.10 8.77
Total financial liabilities 1.29 118.63 1.51 137.79
All in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at September 04, 2023
Amount Amount
{in foreign currency) (in %)

Financial assets
Trade receivables CHF - =
Total financial asscts
Financial liabilitics

o uUsD - -

QAL L T
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202
(ANl amownts are in Indian 2 lakl except share data and as stared)

Scensitivity analysis

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase in the  against the relevant foreign currencies, 5% is the rate used in order to determine the sensitivity analysis considering the past
trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated menetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the 2 increases 5% against the relevant currency.

fall

5% loss depr /5% loss appreciation in T against ing foreign currencies:

March 31, 2025

Trade payables For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
- Impact on profit
UsD 279 0.07
CHF 2.70 6.27
AUD - 0.11
GBP 043 -
|EUR - 044
- Impact on other equity For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31,2024

USD 2.09 0.05

CHF 2.02 4.69

AUD - 0.08

GBP 0.32 -

EUR - 033

Trade receivables* For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

- Impact on profit 0.17 -

- Impact on other equity 0.13 -

" A 5% decrease in the 3 against the above currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31. 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above. on the

basis that all other variables remain constant

36 Capital management

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns o its
e T The C

strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to

is based on

s ] of its

The capital

capital using a ratio of 'Net Debt' to Total Fquity'. For this purpose, Net Debt is

defined as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and non-lien bank deposits. Total equity comprises of equity share capital and other equity. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. During the period/year, no significant changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes refating to the management of the Company’s capital structure.

The net debt to total equity ratio is as follows:

[Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended | As at Septmeber 04,
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 2023
Borrowings 2,303.25 784.96 -
Total borrowings (a) 2,303.25 784.96 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 724,12 357.03 -
Less: Other bank balances - - -
Less: Bank deposil . 2 A 2
Total (b) 724.12 357.03 -
Net debt (a-b) 1,579.13 427.93 -
Fquity share capital 475.73 475.73 1.00
Other equity 9,208.77 2.080.72 -
Total equity 9,684.50 2,556.45 1.00
Net debt to total equity ratio 0.16 0.17 -
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¥ lakh except share data and as stated)

37 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR') expenditure
In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Act, CSR spent is at least two percent of average net profits made during the three immediately preceding
financial years in pursuance of its CSR policy, shall be ensured . Basis the recommendation of CSR committee, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved
various 'Other than Ongoing projects' for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the Act. Details of the same as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount required to be spent during the year 54.01 -

Amount of expenditure incurred on during the year :

- (i) Construction/acquisition an asset

- (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 54.01
54.01 -

Shortfall/(excess) carried forward to the next year & “
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 54.01 4

Reason for shortfall:

Nature of CSR activities:
Development of a Neuro-Surgery Simulator.

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of unspent amount for other than ongoing projects:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount required to be spent during the year 54.01 -
Amount spent during the year - -
Amount deposited in specified fund of Schedule VII of the Act 54.01 -

Closing unspent/(excess) spent balance -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(ANl amounts are in Indian T lakh except sharve data and as stated)

38 Related party disclosures

(i) Names of related parties and nature of relationship
(a) Key managerial personnel:

Mr. Anuj Chahal

Mrs. Kanika Chahal

Mr. Sunil Tomar

(¢) Close Member of key ial per: I, with whom there are transactions during the year:
Mr. Ram Kumar Verma Father of Mr, Anuj Chahal
Mr. Sumit Chahal Brother of Mr. Anuj Chahal
Mrs, Pushpa Mother of Mr. Anuj Chzhal

(c) Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Maverick Solutions Inc.
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pyt Ltd
RMHPL
Organis Gmbh
Neosim AG

(ii) Transactions with related parties:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Sale
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Maverick Solutions Ine 861.30 926.66
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pvt Ltd §03.26 -
Neosim AG 347 -
1.668.02 926.66
(b) Purchases
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Neosim AG Switzerland 302.46 1,213.94
30246 L2350
(¢ ) Rent Expenses
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anuj Chuhal 60.00 -
Mrs. Kanika Chahal 60.00 18.00
120.00 18.00
——— ——
(d) Staff Imprest (given)
Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members
Mrs. Kanika Chahal 20.24
Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members
Mr. Sumit Chahal 3.26 0.60
23.51 0.60
A el
(¢ ) Staff Imprest (recovered)
Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Kanika Chahal 2593 328
Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members
Mr. Sumit Chahal 3.78 0.81
29.71 4.09
— —tl
() Consultancy Fee
Key managerial personnel
Mr. Sunil Tomar - 6.00
Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members
Mr. Rum Kumar Verma 18.00 6.00
18.00 12.00
(g) Remuneration
Key managerial personnel
Mr. Anuj Chahal 59.86 20.00
Mrs, Kanika Chahal 35.86 12.50
Mr. Sunil Tomar 29.86 -
poel and their Close members
14.26 9.08
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amenmty are in Indian < lakh except share data and as stated)

(h) Loan & Advance (given)
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence

Maverick Solation In¢ 259,44 247.50
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pyt Lid 141.43 249.91

Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Kanika Chahal 7170 1.397.52

Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members

Mr. Sumit Chahal 7.70 -
480.27 1.894.94
B

(i) Loan & Advance (recovered)

Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Maverick Solutions Inc 52.80 247.50
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pyt Lid 7.04 267.28

Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members

Mrs. Kanika Chahal 61.77 1.152.77
61.77 1.152.77
— = ——
(j) Loan taken
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anuj Chahal 832.55 -
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pvt Lid - 267.28
832.55 267.28
————————— =
(k) Loan Repaid
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anuj Chahal 59.11 -
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pvt Ltd - 24991
59.11 -

(iii) Year end balances
Particular

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

() Trade receivables

Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence

Maverick Solutions Ine 447023 235.11
RMHPL 1.72 1.72
Neosim AG 347
Maverick Solutions & Consultancy Pvt Lid 790.44 -
5.265.86 236.83
(b) Trade Payables
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Neosim AG Switzerland 52.67 117.53
52.67 117.53
(¢ ) Advance to Supplier
Enterprise over which key management personnel is having significant influence
Neosim AG Switzerland 411.64 382.86
Neosim, OY 30144 301.44
713.08 684.30
(d ) Consultancy Fee Payable
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sunil Tomar 540 5.40
Key Managerial Personnel and their Close members
Mr. Ram Kumar Verma 1.35 5.69
6.75 11.09
(¢) Rent Payable
Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Kanika Chahal 0.71 16.20
erial Personnel and their Close members
3.00 3.00

% 0.
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Remuneration payable

Key managerial person
Mr. Anuj Chahal 4
Mis. Kanika Chahal

Mr. Sunil Tomar

Key managerial person & their Close members
Mr. Sumit Chahal

Staff Imprest

Key managerial person
Mrs. Kanika Chahal

Key managerial person & their Close members
Mr. Swmit Chahul

(h) Loans and advances

0]

Key managerial person
Mis. Kanika Chahal

Key managerial person & their Close members

Mr. Sumit Chahal

Enterprises in which KMP have significant influence
Maverick Solutions Inc
Maverick Solution & Consultancy Pvt Ltd

Loan Outstanding

Key managerial person & their Close members
Mr. Anuj Chahal

Enterprises in which KMP have significant influence
Maverick Solution & Consultancy Pyt Lid

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTICNS LTD.
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2.88 6.21
1.49 -
1.17 0.80
5.51 9.92
897 3.28
0.72 0.20
9.69 349
— —
254.69 24475
7.70 «
206.64 -
117.02 -
586.05 244.75
72540 -
- 17.36
72540 17.36
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Notes to the financlal statcments for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al omonnts ave tn Indion  lakh excepr shave data and as stared)

30,1 First-time adoption of Ind-AS
These financis! statements. for the year ended 31 March 2025, are the fiest financial szatements of the Company which hias been prepaned in accordance with lid AS for penods up 1o and inciuding the year ended 31 March 2024,
e Company preparad ity Mnancint in d with ing stundianids notificd urder section 133 of the Compunics. Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Congranies (Accounts) Rules, 2012 (lndian
GAAP or previows GAAP;

Accordingly, the Company bas prepared finsicial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2025, topether with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, as
described in the summary of material secounting policies. In prepaning these financial tatements, the Company”s opening balance sheet was prepared as ot September 04, 2023, the Company’s date of transition 10 Ind AS. This
nute explain the princpul adjustments mide by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP fnancial statements, mcluding the Balance shodt us @) September 04, 2023 und the financial stsiemenss s al end ‘or the year ended 31

Narch 2024,
As at March 31,2024
Particulars
Nutes Previous GAAY Reclassifications | Remeasurement Rectification of errors Ind AS

Asscts

Non-carrent assels

Property. plant and equipment AL 4744 0,00 - 474
Financial assets

« Other Mnancial assets A2 - 19746 - - 197.46
Drfermed tax assets (net) A3AS - 1049) 63808 . - 63849
Tetal non-current asscts 4744 196.97 638.98 - B83.39
Current ussets

Inventories AT 726.3% 000 3.089.16 : 341554
Financial sssets .

- “Trude neceivables [aser 7o v 215071 (001 (6.63728) 3 1342

= Cashr el st cquivalents A2 63128 (274.25) - - 51m

- Other bank balances A2 . 106,65 - 106.65

= Loans A2 1.665.05 (L1543 * - 510,68

= Other Minanciul usscts - 3995 (3.23) - 62
(nher current assets 396,72 1,084.55 Lo1Iz47 - 249373
Current-tax assets (net) = - . . .
Votul current assets 10.570.12 (197.48) (2,538.88) - 783377
Total asscts 10.617.56 {0.51) {1.899.59) - 871716
Equity and liabilitics

kquity

Equity share capital 47571 . : 475.73
(nher equity 39.08 3.980.61 0.00 _(L899.K9) - 2,050.72
Total equity 456,34 0.00 (1,899.89) - 2.556.45
Liabilitics

Non-current Habilitics

Fioancial Labilies

- Borrowings. . . B

- Others . - - - -
Provisions - - - - -
Defened tax labilitics (act) 049 (0.49) - - .
Tatal non-currcat Tinbilities 049 0.49) - . -
Current labilities

Firancial liabelities

- Borrowings 143496 1630.00) - TRE 96
= Trile payublos -

« total vulstanding dues of micro and small eoterprses: s 354 REAE) - - 42
- total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro and small enterprises 269653 47.12) - - 264941

= Other financial liabilitics 15828 - - 15825
Onher current bahilities 136401 50217 - - 1 866,18
Provisions 661.69 1661.69) . .
Curvent L labifities (1) = 660,19 - - 00019
Total current liabilitics 6.160.73 0.02) - - 6,160.71
“Total equity and fiabilities 10,617.56 (0.50) (1.899.89) - 8.717.06_

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTE. For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD
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Particulars

Notes Previous GAAP of ervors Ind AS

Assets
Non-current assetsy
Propecty. plan: and equipment
Finsincial assets - - - .
= Other linamciul asscts - - - -

Total non-current assets - - - - -
Current assels
Insentosies - - B - .
Financin) assets

= Tude recenvables - - . . .

= Cash oo casli cguivalents . . 5 .

- Other hank balances . " c

Loans -

« Other Minanciid assets A2 - 100 . - 100
Orber cunrent ussets A2 100 (Lo - ”
Current-tax assets (net) . . - &
Total current assets 1.00 - - - 100
Total asscts 1.00 - - - 100

= —-
Equity and liabilitics
kquity
Fquny share capita) 100 - - - 160
Onber equity . - - -

Total equity 100 - - E 1.00
Liabilitics
Nen-current Habitities
Finuncial habilues
~ Horrow ings - - - - s

« Others - . . .
Provisions - - . - -
Deferred tax linbilities (net) - - - - .
Total non-current liabilities - - - - =
Current lisbilities
Financial bubrhities

Borrowings . 3
« ‘Trule payables - - - - -
~ ot vulstanding dues of micro and sorall eaterprses. smd - - : = R
otal outstaading dues of creditors ather than micro and saml! enterprises . A 5

- Other financial Tiabilities
Otber cunent hudsilivey - - - 2
Provisions - . - = »
Current tax labilities (net)

“Total current liabilities - - - - -
Tatal cquity and Labititics IJ_O - - - I.!’i_

(This spaee has been loft blank intenticnally)

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTD.
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VMaverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known s Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and 1.0ss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(41 amunmits are in Indian 2 lakh except share data and as yiaod)

39.02 Fiffect of Tnd AS Adoption on Total Comprehensive Income

Vear ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Notes I Previous GAAP I n, | Rectification of Ind AS
Frrors

Income
Revenue from operations A3 204704 (3.62481) 142223
Other ncome 2268 - - - 2368
Total Income 7.069.72 - (5,624.81) - 144491
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed A2 452209 (74.80) - - 4.747.30
Purchases of stock-in-trade A2 - 78.66 - - TR66
Chamges in inventorics of finished goods, work-in-progeess und stock-in-tde A3 (726.3%) - (3089, 16) (AR1S54)
Lmployee benefits expense 11330 . . - 11330
Finance costs 1475 - - - 1475
Depreciation and amortisdion expense Al 230 - . 239
Other expenses Al A2 A 178,16 13.82) 323 - 177.57
Total expenses 440433 = (3,UR5.93) - 131843
Total expenses
Profit before tax 2,665.39 - (2,538.88) - 126,49
‘Tax expense
a) Current tax 67044 - - 67044
b) Income tax relating Lo prior periods - - -
b) Defeared tax (net) AS 049 - (h38.9%) . (h3% 49)
“Totul tax expense 670,93 - (638.9%) - 31.95
Profit for the year 199445 - (1,899.89) - 94.54
Profit after tux from discontinued sperations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations - S
Profit for the year 199445 - (1.899.89) - 94.54
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Trems (hat will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of nel delined benefit lability tasset) - - -

- Income tx relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit o loss - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 1,994.45 = (1.599.%9) S 94.54

39.03_Cash flow reconciliation

ety [Trevions GAAT | [ maas |
Net cash flows from operating sctivities (2.215.7%) 117642 2039.33)
Net cash flows used in investing activitics (49.83) (78492 (834,76)
Net cash flows (rom (mancing achivities 3.896 86 (665.74) 323112
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 63128 (274.25) 35703
Cash and cash cquivalents ot the September 04.2023 . . =
Cash and cash eguivalents at the March 31, 2024 631.28 (274.25) 357.03

(This space has been lefi Mlank brentiomally)

For MAVERICK SIMULATION SOLUTIONS LTO. For MAVERICK SIMULATION s0Ly710
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amount in 2 lakh. wiless otherwise stated)

39.04 The reconciliation of net profit or loss reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to fotal comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS
is given below:

Description Year en:;;c; ‘.:l March
Net Profit for the year as per previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) 1.994.43
Ind AS adjustments:

Adjustment made for Sale Reversal as per Ind AS 115 (2.535.65)
Adjustment made for Ind AS 12 defered Tax 63898

Adjustment made for ECL on EMD provision made as per Ind '

AS 109 - 3.

Net profit for the year as per Ind AS 94.
Total comprehensive profit/loss for the year 94,

=1+l

39.05 The reconciliation of cquity reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to cquity in accordance with Ind AS is given below:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 September 4, 2023
Shareholder’s equity for the year as per previous IGAAP 3,980.61 1.00
Ind AS adjustments:
Adjustment made for Sale Reversal as per Ind AS 115 (2,535.65) -
Adjustment made for Ind AS 12 defered Tax 63898
Adjustment made for ECL on FMD provision made as per Ind
AS 109 (3.23)

Description

Sharcholder’s equity as per Ind AS 2.080.72 1.00

39.06 Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS
Ind AS - 101 allows first-time adopters certain ptions and certain optional ptions from the ive ication of certain requi

under Ind AS. The group has applied the following optional T and datory P

39.07 Optional Exemptions on first-time adoption of Ind AS

a) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment
On wransition (o IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value ol all its propenty, plant and equip as at September 04,
2023 measured as per the previous GAAP and use the carrying value as the d d cost of property, plant and equip and Intangible Assets.

39.08 Mandatory Exceptions on first-time adoption of Ind AS

a) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the group has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS, ax there is no objective evidence of on error in those esti However, esti that were required under Ind AS but not

required under previous GAAP are made by the group for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates
idered in preparation of i that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Determination of the di d Value for Financial instruments carried are amortised cost
Impairnyent of Financial Assets based on the expected Credit loss model.

b) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the
date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a lirst-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively
(rom a date of entily's choice provided that the information needed o apply Ind AS 109 1o ial assets and financial liabilities d gnized as a
result of past transactions was obtained at the time ol initially ac ing lor those i

¢) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as al the date of transition.

Further, the standard permits of financial assels dat ized cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of
ition if pective application is i icable. A Jingly, the Group has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and
circumstances thot exist on the date of ition. M of fi inl assets d at smortized cost has been done retrospectively except

where the some is impracticoble.
There are no items of financiol asset and liabilities which are required 1o be de recognised as per Ind AS 109.

d) R ement of post-empl benefit obligati
Under Ind AS, Remeasurement i.e. actuarial gains und losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the netinterest expense on
the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit and loss. Under the previous GAAP, this

remeasurement was forming part of the profit and loss for the year.

¢

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, il items of income and expense recognised in o period should be included in profit and loss for the period, unless a standard requires
or permits otherwise. ltems of income and exp that are not recognised in profitand loss but in other comprehensive income under "Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income)” includ of defined benefit plans and their corresponding income tax
effects. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP,

For MAVERIC
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39.09  Explanatory notes for Ind AS adjustments

Al

A2

Ad

AS

Ab

Rectification of crrors
The company has written ofT error that do not meet the recognition criteria under Ind AS, The carrying amount of such expenses has been
djusted against retained camings on the date of iti

Regrouping / reclassification
Appropriate adjustments have been made in the ¢ lidated fi ial wherever required. by a reclassification of the corresponding
items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows in order to bring them in line with the Ind AS presentation requirements.

Reversal of revenue and purchase

Under the previons GAAP, revenue was recognised upon the transfer of rights and obligations to the . In aceord: with Ind AS 115,
revenue is recognised only when the related performance obligations are satisfied. Since certain performance obligations remained unsatisfied
as ol Lhe reporting date, the revenue previously recognised has been reversed to align with the requirements of Ind AS 115

Provision of expected credit loss on financial assets

In nccordance with Ind AS 109 Financial I the group has recognized an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision on financial assets
Jat ized cos, including trade reccivables, for the first time. The ECL provision has been d ined using the simplified

approach [or trade m:cnnblm nnd lhc general approach for other financial assets. The adjustment related to the creation of this pmvmon has

been recognized in d gs as of the date of transition, as required under Ind AS 101 Firsi-time Adoption of Indian Accounting

Deferred Tax Adjustments

Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognized for the tax effect of timing differences between accounting profit and taxable profit for
the year using the income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recognized using the balance sheet for future tax consequences
of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets uml liabilities and their respective tax bases, The above difference, together with
the consequential tox impact of the other Ind AS 1 lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognizec
in correlation 1o the underlying jon either in retained eamings or through statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income.

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS. all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit and loss for the period, unless a standard
requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense lhnt are nol m:ogms:d in profit and loss but in other comprehensive income under
“Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprel i of defined benefit plans and their

corresponding income tax effects. The concept of other comprehensive income dld not exist under previous GAAP

For MAVER
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Maverick Simulation Solutions Limited (formerly known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Indian ¢ lakh except share data and as stated)

40 The analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024, as applicable, are as below:

Ratio Numcrator Denominator For the year ended For the year ended | Change Remarks*
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current ratio current assets current liabilities 2.82 1.27]  121.39%
" . g Total debt - 5 At

Debt-cquity ratio [Including lease liabilities] Total cquity 0.24 0.31 22.67%

Earnings available for debt service

5 2o Debt service

Debt service coverage ratio [Proﬂf/(lo.ss) Ao ‘.‘“ *+Sopmclivoard (Interest and lease payments+ short 338 0.11] 2936.40%!

amortisation+Impairment Saik

. term lcasc liabilitics)
+finance cost+ loss on sale of in t
properties|
Average shareholder’s equity
: = [(opening 3
J, o )0,
Return on cquity Net profit after tax ehascholder's equily + 0.78 0.07) 955.49%|
closing shareholder's equity) /2]
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 2.29 0.53 332.30%!
:::c Wb v Revenue From Operations Average trade receivables 247 5.54 -55.48%
Trade payables turnover ratio [Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 1.51 3.53 -57.06%
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue From Operations Working s 233 1.70 36.85%
Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes Revenue From Operation 0.35 0.07] 427.79%%
Return on capital employed  |Earmings before interest and taxes ;l;::ﬁ::l:snc' WoriTomt Inss 0.53 0.04] 1164.32%
Return on invesiment Gain on investment Time-weighted average investments NA NA
*Explanation for ratios where the variance is beyond 25% compared (o previous year:
-n N CiLan TINL ~ "
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Maverick I Limited (i Ay known as Maverick Simulation Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the your ended March 31, 2025
(Al amiounes ore in Indian ¥ lakh excopt share doto and as stared)

41 Business combinution of entity under commun contrul

I} Dunng the previous year, the company und k 4 business comls fek Sol
then, director & shareholder now). A ingly, the
i) Ihe company has applicd the Povling of hn-ruh method to account for business cotnbi in v with App

ix C of Ind AS 103,

Ine. clfective from 15th December 2023, Both the entities were i common contro! oMy, Anuj Chahal (proprictor
qualifies ss Common (ulml Business (.umbllmlnmmd« Appendiy C of Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations,

Under this method:

2) The assets & liabilities of the transferor company wre recorded at their existingeurrying amounts as per the financial statements of the transferor,

b) No adjustments has e been made (o reflectfair values, or 10 recognize any new assets or habilities,
€) No goodwill has been recognized as 4 result of the combination

d by way of issue of equity shares to Mr. Anuj Chahal.

i) The purchase consideration for the combination witsRs, 3,92,75,000 (three croees ninety-two lakhs y-five ds) which was disch

iv)  Summary of asscts & habilitics acquired from Maverick Solutions Inc, as at 15th December. 2023:
Particulars Amount (Ry.)
Total assets acquired - 1,689.03 -
Total liabilitses sssumed - 1.296.28
Net assets taken over - 392,75
Consideration (by way of issuc of cquity shurcs) - 392,75

V) Interms of the ngreement. followmg asscts and overdrall faciliies are tsken in the books of the company and the resultant benelits acorue o the company solely although the same has not yet boen transcferred m the

Company's name

As ut As ut
Particulars March 31, 2024
Assets
Margin Moncy meludmg FDs 289.54 21327
Total 289.54 27327
1iabifitics
Short Term Borrowing - Overdraft kacilities 35210 39497
Total 35210 39497

42 Segment Information
Business scoment
Operating segments are thase components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Miaker in the Company to make decisions for performunce and
resonree allocation.
Ihe Company operates in a single reportable segment .2 sule of all kinds of si and i for medical and health i activities, dingly, there is no ble segment to be
disclosed as required by Ind AS — 108 “Segment Reporting™
G hical Segment
As ut Asut Asut
Particulurs Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 cmber 04, 2023
Revenue
~Within indiz 13.627.34 142223
<Outside India 347 -
13,630.81 142223
Aysets
~Within mdis 16,344.76 $T717.06 L.oo
-Outside India - - -
16,344.76 8_.7!7.16 1.00
43 I inf i i 11 to the € Act, 2013

by
1) The Company hna :lvmphed with (he mlum:mmn with respect 1o number of layers as prescribed under seetion 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Compamics (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

1) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or virtual currency duning the year.
i)
i)

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other peesons or entities i
b. provide any guarsntee, security o the like to or on bebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has not advanced or Toaned or invested funds 1o any other persons or entitics. including foreign entities ('L
dentified in any munner by or an bebalf of the company (‘Ultinue Heneficiaries') or

diaries’) with the

‘Ihere is no income swrrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income-tux Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

d ding that the 1 dhary shall:

v} The Company has not received any (und from any persons or ontitics, including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the undersianding (whether recorded i writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Panty ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or

b. provide any gusrantee, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ultimate Heneficiaries,
The Company has nol enterod into any tonsactions with struck off companies.

‘The Company do not have uny charges or satisfaction which is yet to be regis with Reg
I'he Company has nat been declared wilful defaulter during any of the reposting vear,

Vi)
Vi)
viii)
ix)

of C

{ROC) beyond the stututory year.

No proceedings have been mitiated or are pending agamst the Company (or holding any Bensmi property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 198%) and (he rules made thereunder.

X} Ihe title of the immovable property l ulbet than properties where the Compun) i# the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lesses) are held in the name of Company

xi)  Previous year figures have regs d wherever
aii) The figures have been rounded ol’l 10 the nearest lakhs of rupocs up to two decimal places.

As per our Report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
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